Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

C\";Gﬂﬂ' .
e i1y Flint
I i Swyddog Cyswillt:
Eﬁ!!ﬂrtigbnl re Sharon Thomas 01352 702324

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng lan Dunbar (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Sian Braun, David Cox, Jean Davies, Ron Davies, Adele Davies-
Cooke, Rosetta Dolphin, Mared Eastwood, George Hardcastle, Ray Hughes,
Dennis Hutchinson, Ted Palmer, Mike Reece, Paul Shotton and David Wisinger

Dydd Llun, 8 Hydref 2018
Annwyl Gynghorydd,
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Cymunedau a
Menter a fydd yn cael ei gynnal am 2.00 pm Dydd Gwener, 12fed Hydref, 2018 yn
Ystafell Bwyllgor Delyn, Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug CH7 6NA i ystyried yr eitemau

canlynol

RHAGLEN

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU
Pwrpas: | derbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO)

Pwrpas: | derbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylitiad a chynghori’r Aelodau
yn un hynny.

3  YSTYRIED MATER A ATGYFEIRIWYD AT Y PWYLLGOR YN UNOL A'R
TREFNIADAU GALW | MEWN (Tudalennau 3 - 6)

Mae penderfyniad y cyfarfod Cabinet ar 25 Medi yn ymwneud & Un Llwybr
Mynediad at Dai (SARTH) wedi cael ei alw i mewn. Atodir copi o’r weithdrefn
ar gyfer delio ag eitem sydd wedi’i galw i mewn.




UN LLWYBR MYNEDIAD AT DAI (SARTH) (Tudalennau 7 - 52)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Tai ac Asedau) - Dirprwy Arweinydd y Cyngor Aelod
a'r Cabinet dros Dai

Atodir y dogfennau canlynol i gynorthwyo Aelodau:

e Copi 0 adroddiad y Un Liwybr Mynediad at Dai (SARTH)

e Copi o’r Cofnod o Benderfyniad
e Copi o’r Hysbysiad Galw i Mewn

Yn gywir

SN

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd



item ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3

Call in arrangements revised February 20! ;

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

CALL-IN ARRANGEMENTS

1. Background

The arrangements for calling in a decision are to be found in paragraph 16
of the Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained within the Council’s
Constitution. The legal authority is derived from section 21 (3) of the Local
Government Act 2000. This note summarises the provisions in the
Constitution.

2. Decision of the Cabinet

When a decision is made by the Cabinet, the Democratic Services
Manager publishes a record of those decisions within two days of them
being made. Copies are available at County Hall, and are sent to all
Members of the County Council.

The decision record bears the date on which it was published and specifies
that the decision will come into force, and may then be implemented on the
expiry of five working days after the publication of the decision, unless it is
called in within 5 working days after the publication of the decision

3. Calling in a Decision

If the Chief Officer (Governance) or Democratic Services Manager receives
a request from the Chair of the committee or at least four members of the
Council, (for the avoidance of doubt such a request should be in writing on
a call in notice form, giving the reason for the call-in, and signed by all
parties) the Democratic Services Manager will notify the decision taker of
the call-in, and then arrange a meeting of the Committee within seven
working days of the decision to call-in. (The last working day before
Christmas day and the three non-public holiday days between Christmas
and New Year will not be counted as working days for the purposes of this
paragraph).

4. The Call-in Meeting

By their nature, call-in meetings can often be held at short notice (i.e.
within seven working days of the call-in decision) and the only item of
business to be transacted would normally be to deal with the call-in.
However, from time to time it is expedient to consider a call in at a meeting
which has already been convened.

Tudalen 3



Call in arrangements revised February 2017

It is suggested that the procedure outlined below be used at such a
meeting.

5. Procedure for a Call-in Meeting

(i) The decision makers who have been invited to the meeting (usually the
relevant Cabinet Member(s) and/or Chief Officer(s)) should be invited to
sit at the committee table at the start of the meeting, as should any
initiators of the call in who are not already members of the committee.

(ii) The Chairman will invite the Democratic Services Manager or Overview
& Scrutiny Facilitator to briefly outline the call-in procedure for Members
of the Committee, explaining the time constraints within the Constitution.
The Officer should also outline the ideal procedure, set out below, for an
Overview & Scrutiny Committee to deal with a call-in meeting.

(i)  The Chairman will then invite the initiators of the call-in (those who have
signed the letter) to explain and clarify their reasons for calling in the
decision. This can be by means of a spokesman, or by several Members
contributing.

(iv)  The decision makers will then have the opportunity to respond to the
issues raised by those initiating the call-in and provide further information
if they believe that it will assist the committee’s understanding of the
decision.

(v)  The Chairman will then invite questions from Members, and the decision-
makers and call-in initiators will be invited to answer the questions.

(vi) At the end of Members’ questions, the Chairman will ask the initiators of
the call-in and the decision makers to sum up their respective cases.

(vii)  The Chairman will then invite the Democratic Services Manager or
Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator to explain the Committee’s options for
decision contained in the Constitution. The decision should include one
of the four options given below, which are contained in the Constitution.

Option 1

If, having considered the decision, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is
satisfied with the explanation which it has received, it will indicate as
such, in order for the decision to be implemented.

Option 2

If, having considered the decision, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is
‘no longer concerned’, having received the explanations, but is not
minded to indicate that it is ‘satisfied with the explanation’, then it is in
order for the Committee to resolve that ‘the explanation be accepted but
not endorsed by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee’.

Tudalen 4



Call in arrangements revised February 2017

(viii)

Option 3

If, having considered the decision, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is
still concerned about it, then it may refer it back to the decision making
person or body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its
concerns. If referred to the decision maker then the decision maker shall
then reconsider, at the earliest scheduled meeting, amending the
decision or not, before adopting a final decision.

Option 4

If, having considered the decision, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is
still concerned about it, then it may refer the matter to full Council. If
referred to full Council, the Council shall meet to consider the referral
within 10 working days unless there is a scheduled meeting of the full
Council at which the matter may be considered within the expiry of a
further 5 working days.

Note:

If either Option 1 or Option 2 is decided upon, the Cabinet decision can
be implemented after the Overview & Scrutiny meeting. If either Option 3
or 4 is decided upon, the Cabinet decision cannot be implemented after
the Overview & Scrutiny meeting until it has received further
consideration by either the Cabinet or Council.

The Committee will then discuss the matter and following debate, reach
a decision.

Tudalen 5



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4

Sir'y Fflint
("E!in!g!z.!re

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 25" September 2018
Report Subject Single Access Route to Housing (SARTH)
Cabinet Member Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Housing
Report Author Chief Officer (Housing and Assets)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Single Access Route to Housing (SARTH) is a partnership project between all
the major social landlords in North East Wales, covering the local authority areas of
Conwy County Borough, Denbighshire and Flintshire.

SARTH introduced a banding allocation system and a policy that shifted away from
a focus purely on social housing towards one which provides advice on realistic
housing options.

SARTH went live in Flintshire in April 2015 and following a successful bid the Council
has hosted SARTH for Denbighshire from April 2017.

The council manages the housing register on behalf of Denbighshire County
Council. This includes the housing solutions triage as well as managing the social
housing register. The Council are developing new contracts for Denbighshire
County Council and the partners with revised performance targets.

Demand for the social housing register has grown over the past three years. This
is putting increasing pressure on the management of the register and leading to
increased wait times for properties.

A review of the policy was carried out in 2017 following a year of operation. The
review was necessary to ensure the policy was compliant with new legislation. It
also allowed any issues raised to be addressed and to develop the policy into a
more user friendly document.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Cabinet continues to support the management of the Single Access Route
to Housing (SARTH) policy in Flintshire

Tudalen 7




Cabinet supports the revised and updated policy document

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE MANAGEMENT OF THE SARTH POLICY

1.01

Background

1.02

SARTH is a partnership project between all the major social landlords in
North East Wales, covering the local authority areas of Conwy County
Borough, Denbighshire and Flintshire.

1.03

In addition to the above Councils, the partnership also includes Cartrefi
Conwy, Clwyd Alyn, Grwp Cynefin, North Wales Housing, Wales and West
and Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd housing associations.

1.04

The SARTH policy introduced a banding allocation system and a policy that
moved away from a focus purely on social housing and more towards
providing advice on realistic housing options. The regional policy was
developed in recognition that there is a high demand for rented homes in
the region and too few vacant properties to meet demand.

1.05

It was agreed that partners will provide the best, most useful, consistent and
accessible advice and information to everyone who approaches them
looking for housing. The aim is to enable customers to make the most
informed choice about how to find a home to meet their needs. This advice
covers a whole range of affordable housing options, including social
housing, private rented accommodation, home ownership and other
alternatives.

1.06

The policy provides the following commitment:

“all partners in the region will allocate housing stock in a transparent, fair,
consistent and accessible way, which prioritises the people in our
communities according to their housing needs and which meets our legal
requirements. Working together in this way, partners can share strengths
and good practice and place the customer at the heart of everything we do.”

1.07

SARTH went live in Flintshire in April 2015 and following a successful bid.
The Council has hosted SARTH for Denbighshire from April 2017.

1.08

New Policy

1.09

A review of the SARTH policy was carried out in 2017 following the first year
of operation. The review identified that the policy required updating to
ensure compliance with the Housing (Wales) Act 2014.

1.10

The allocation policy is principally governed by The Housing Act 1996 and
the Code of Guidance for Homelessness and Allocations 2016 and Welsh
Statutory Instruments 2014 No. 2603 (w. 257) — Housing Wales — The
Allocation of Homelessness (Eligibility) (Wales) Regulations 2014.

Tudalen 8




Other relevant legislation includes

* Freedom of Information Act 2000

» Equalities Act 2010

 Social Care and Well Being Act 2014

* Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014
» Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015

1.11 | A review of issues raised at the operational panel and steering group
established that there were no significant changes required to any of the key
principles of the policy.

1.12 | The requirement for an updated policy provided an opportunity to develop a
document that is easier to read and understand. The policy (attached at
appendix one) sets out the key commitment of the partners to a common
regional approach to social housing allocations. There are three main
sections within the policy:

Part one - policy statement including:
e aims and objectives
e equality information
¢ legal context;
e commitment to preference and choice;
e how the application will be handled;
o eligibility for the register;
e how to apply and how to review decisions.
Part two - the banding scheme;
e how applications are prioritised.
e circumstances in which additional preference is given
e circumstances where an application may be given reduced priority.
Part three - allocation of properties;
e matching a household to a property;
e making an offer;
o oOffer refusals
e specialist housing requirements.

1.13 | Regional Collaboration

1.14 | A regional panel has been in place from the outset to maximise the benefit
of collaboration through the SARTH partnership. The panel is formed of
operational managers from each partner. The primary purpose of the panel
is to ensure consistency in the application of the policy across the three
counties and to review complaints and appeals from applicants.

1.15 | The panel has been instrumental in addressing wider topics than the register
such as approaches to changes in legislation and issues arising from
welfare reform. The panel led the review of the policy to ensure that policies
and working practices remain compliant.

1.16 | The SARTH steering group includes senjor officer representatives from all

radaicii g




partner organisations across all three counties. The group meets on an ad-
hoc basis to serve as an escalation point for strategic issues arising out of
the panel. The group has further developed partnership arrangements
between landlord organisations across the region and agreed spend of the
regional SARTH budget for IT developments such as Flintshire’s Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) integration and staff support where
necessary.

1.17

Flintshire has been managing the triage and housing register for
Denbighshire since they went live in April 2017. There are many tangible
benefits of Flintshire hosting both registers including consistency of
approach, reduced management and ICT costs and an income stream for
Flintshire. The Council receives £74,345 from external partners for
delivering this service.

1.18

Flintshire’s legal department are drafting contracts for Denbighshire and the
other partners which will meet all the requirements of the Data Protection
Act 2018 and include detailed performance targets expected from the
Council as host for both Flintshire and Denbighshire.

1.19

Social Housing Demand

1.20

In 2017/18, there were 3495 triage applications completed for customers
approaching for housing assistance which represents a 3.9% increase in
enquiries when compared to the same reporting period in 2016/17.

1.21

The numbers on the social housing register are increasing and as such
waiting times for properties are becoming longer. There were 960
households on the list in April 2016, this increased to 1,478 in April 2017
and increased again to 1,649 in April 2018. The households that were let
properties in quarter four of 2017/18 for one, two and three bedroom
properties had been waiting on average between twelve to eighteen months
to be allocated a property.

1.22

The current process for administrating applications is manual and extremely
labour intensive and this was becoming a pressure as volumes increased.
Work is currently underway to introduce automation of the process which
will streamline processes and allow the limited resources available to focus
on the more critical aspects of the service. This is a high priority action for
the service and we expect CRM integration to be complete in the Autumn
which brings further benefits such as improved housing demand
information.

1.23

The chart below shows the breakdown of all the applicants on the register
by their band. It is expected that the vast majority of cases will be in band
two (B2) which is for applicants with a local connection and a housing need.
Band one (B1) applicants are those with an extreme urgent need and Band
three and four (B3 and B4) are for applicants with no local connection or
those who have had their banding reduced as a result of their behaviour,
not addressing rent arrears or it has been identified that they have adequate
resources to resolve their own housing need.

Tudalen 10




I

S0

$0%

I

Bl B2 B3 B4

1.24

Audit Update

1.25

An audit of SARTH was undertaken during September 2017 as part of the
approved Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18. This was a follow up to an audit
on Housing Allocations undertaken in 2016/17. A report was brought to
Overview and Scrutiny committee in January 2018 to update on progress
with recommendations which showed that all urgent actions had already
been implemented. Outstanding actions reported at the time have been
completed within the agreed timescale.

1.26

A key area of work was the need to develop updated and more
comprehensive operational guidance and procedure documents that sit
beneath the policy for staff involved in the management of the register and
housing allocations. Comprehensive guidance and procedures have been
finalised. A robust implementation process is being rolled out providing
small group training sessions for all staff that have any part managing the
register or making allocations. This is mandatory training which will improve
consistency, ownership and engagement across the teams.

1.27

Specialist Housing

1.28

The vast majority of applicants’ housing need will be met from the available
housing stock. However, some applicant households require properties to
meet needs arising from disability or household size; for example, to
accommodate wheel chairs, fit bed hoists, stair lifts and accessible bathing
rooms and some households require more than four bedrooms. Such
housing is in particularly short supply within the social housing stock and
these requirements would not necessarily be met within reasonable
timescales or within existing stock without some further intervention.

1.29

In Flintshire, the current specialist register has 56 applicants awaiting
adapted properties of which 16 have an urgent need in band one. In
addition, there are 12 applicants awaiting large properties (five beds or
more).

1.30

The Specialist Housing Group’s purpose is to keep a track of complex cases
and work to identify solutions where there are specialist requirements.

Tudalen 11




Since its relaunch in 2017 the group have found long term suitable housing
solutions for 35 specialist cases with a further eight provisional allocations
in progress.

1.31

Sourcing suitable accommodation for applicants with specialist needs and
identifying properties that are suitable for complex adaptation work within
our housing stock is difficult and budget constraints makes this even more
challenging. The 35 cases that have received specialist housing have been
delivered through a mixture of new builds and adapting existing stock.

1.32

Although good progress has been made in this area the level of demand for
specialist housing is growing and appropriate solutions cannot always be
achieved quickly which often means applicants who do have specialist
requirements have a considerably longer wait for properties than those
without. A full report on Specialist Housing will be brought to committee
early in 2019.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

There are no specific resource implications arising from this update report.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

There were no consultations required for this update report.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

The growing demand for social housing and increased wait times presents
a risk of increased pressure on the Homeless Service.

Flintshire receives income from Denbighshire County Council and the social
landlords to deliver the register on their behalf. If any of the partners
terminated this arrangement it would result in a reduced income to the
Council.  This risk is managed within existing business planning
approaches.

The updated policy has been subject to an equality impact assessment
carried out by Tai Pawb.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Appendix One: Single Access Route to Housing Policy 2018 attached.

| 6.00

| LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Tudalen 12




6.01 | Contact Officer: Katie Clubb, Customer Support Manager
Telephone: 01352 7035518
E-mail: katie.clubb@flintshire.gov.uk
7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS
7.01 | Housing Solutions Triage — the initial discussion with the customer about

their circumstances and housing need.

Single Access Route to Housing (SARTH) Policy - the regional common
policy for all major social landlords allocating social housing properties
across Conwy, Denbighshire and Wrexham.

CRM - the Council’s customer facing case management system.

Tudalen 13




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



The Common Housing
Allocation Policy

Tudalen 15



f Ba

Contents
INFOIMAtION BOXES....o.iiiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt ettt b e et b e e te b e s esesbeaeaeseas 3
The Allocation Policy for Social Housing in Conwy, Denbighshire and Flintshire.............ccooceveevennnee.e. 4
PART 1 — POLICY STATEMENT ....oouiiiiiittiite ittt ettt sttt e e e sta e sa e i e saeestaenteenssessnasnnanen 5
Lo INEFOAUCTION. .ottt ettt a et s e e e s be s eses s e s eneeneenetens 5
1.0 AIMS & ODJECLIVES ...ttt et st ete et se et et e e teeaseas et enneessensensanss 5
1.2 LBAI CONTEXE ....eveeiienieiret ettt ettt ettt e et e b e besbeebe e st e s ensesaesbeensensensesnseneereas 6
1.3 The roles of the PArtNers .........cccccviiieieiicee ettt st aeebe e eneen 6
LA EQUANIEY ettt e e et e st e e re e te et beerbeeaeeareeans 7
1.5 Management of INFOrMation ..........ccovieiiiiiiiiiiicecee ettt b et reeneenaens 7
1.6 Monitoring and Review of Allocations POlICY ........cccevieeriiiiiieiiiiisiceeeee et 7
1.7 LOCAl LEttiNG PONCIES ....ueevivireieiieieeiieiestiste ettt e sttt ettt sttt e s eaesaesaeensenseseennenneseen 8
2. The HOUSING REGISTET....cueiiiiiiriirieeteeteeteet ettt ettt ettt et et et e b s e s b esaastasbessessaessansassannnans 8
2.1 THE REGISTON ..ottt ettt et ettt sae et et esaesbeebeeat et eseesbesbeeteensansensaseeenas 8
2.2 WHO CaN APPIY? oottt st sttt e bt sbe e ebe e b e erb e et e earesaeeeraenarenae s 9
2.3 Who can be included in the applicant’s household?..........c.ccocviiriiiviinicieniceeeeeeeee, 9
2.4 Transfer APPICAtIONS ....cc.cviiieiiiirie ettt ettt ettt teereereereetaeereereeneennenns 9
2.5 Applications from Employees of Partner Organisations, Elected Members and their close
FAMIIY FRIATIVES. ... ettt e be et e basbesbeebseree s anseeseeneenes 9
2.6 Applications to amend existing social housing tenancies..........c.cceceveveeverecceccecsese e, 10
3. Applying for ACCOMMOAALION ....c..ouiiiiiiiiiiiiicce ettt et st ene s 10
3.1 Making an APPlICALION ..c..ovuiiuiiiiiiiiieies ettt sttt eenees 10
3.2 HOUSING OPLIONS...ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt ettt et e e sn e e b sbe e enesnesaen 10
3.3 ENGIDIIILY .eoueeeieiecrie ettt et st ete e st e st e eteereeaeenrenrenrens 11
3.4 ChoiCe aNd PrefernCe....c.ovueieuiiiiietiieet ettt ettt sttt be st st e se s asennas 11
3.5 Support to make an apPliCation........coeviiiiiineiiii ittt ereereeana 12
3.6 DeCISION LIMESCAIES ...ttt sttt st ebe ettt st sbe bt e s e saesbasteas 12
3.7 Notification of deCiSION ........c.coviviiiiiiiiiii e 12
3.8 Applicant’s rights to be informed, to request a review and make a complaint ..................... 12
3.9 Requesting to see what information is held on a housing application...........ccccevveveecreennnnn. 12

3.10 Requesting that a decision relating to an applicant’s priority on the housing register, or any
allocation of houSINg, iS FTEVIEWEM ........c.eecuiciiiiieiiiciecteeet et ane 12

3.11 Requesting a review of a decision made in relation to a decision outside of the scope of

BRES POIICY ettt e be et e et a e b e ae et e et b e et besaeeeaeeeraenres 13

3.12 Making a Complaint about how an application has been handled .............ccccocvvveviecnnenns 13

3.13 False or misleading iNfOrmMation ..........ccccevieiieiinesice ettt e eesr b v 13
The Common Housing Allocation Policy —June 2018 1

Tudalen 16



|

o e

3.14 Keeping an application UP 10 date ......ccocceeviieiiiieiiicec s ee e st rr v 13
3.15 Keeping the register UP t0 date .......ccceeiiiieeiiciece ettt v v 13
3.16 Removing applications from the register ..........cccveviiveeiiiiecce e 14
PART 2 = THE BANDING SCHEME.......c...oiiiiiiiiieniteeteece et cre st e et e v e e v e s ae e snae e sarae e neeennes 16
E o N 1o 1 AV = 1 4 T [ PO PSRRIt 16
4.3 Housing Need - Reasonable Preference .....coovvvveieiiiceiieiiecee ettt e 17
4.4 Urgent hOUSING NEEM.......cciiiiiieiiiieete ettt e e e e s e e sr e st ae s e e saeestnesreesnsaeseensanssenns 18
4.5 HOUSING NEEM ..ottt e ettt e et s st e s etaeeste e etee e s aaee s teeeaseeesseeenasesensaeesnsaesneenseeans 18
4.6 REAUCEA PIIOTILY.....eeueieitiiieeiietete ettt ettt e st et et e e e s aeete e s e sbesbeeseeaeensesseessassenseessensenseasen 18
Q.7 NO PIIOTITY ceveeiiiiitie ettt ettt e e e e st e s s et e e e seabbeeeesbbaeesansaaeeaanbeeessnsbaeansanssaens 19
PART 3 - ALLOCATIONS ..ottt st e s sttt e s see e sabe e e sateessabaesnneesataeensean 27
LT A | (o Tor 1 A1 To o o T o T=] o AT OSSPSR 27
5.1 Allocating Properties according to banding priority and waiting time...........c.ccccoeevevvierennns 27
5.2 Matching applicants t0 ProOPerties.........ccevivirieierieiieiceeiet e s seesae e 27
5.3 Confirming the members of the household ............c.ccooiiiiiiiiiii e, 27
5.4 DUPlicate apPliCAtIONS. ....cc.eeiruriiiiiritectectirtee ettt e e ae e e e e sae et e sresaeennenesrans 27
5.5 Household make up and entitlement for bedrooms ..........cccocevviveieienieiecece e, 27
5.6 Homeless Applicants to whom a statutory homeless duty is owed.........ccccoecvveveveninecnennans 30
5.7 16 and 17 year old appliCants .......c.cocveueiieiiriiieieesestcse et sie et st sae e ae e 30
5.8 Older aPPlICANTS ....c.viiiiriiiieiiiieect ettt ettt b et a e e e ta b te e teennenenteeaeane 30
5.9 Gypsy and Traveller appliCants ........c.cevuevuiiiriiieierieeie et s 31
5.10 Applicants accommodated in care or approved supported housing ..........cccceeveevueevreennenne. 31
5.11 Applicant households requiring adapted or accessible properties .........cccceceevevieriieecnenns 31
5.12 VErfiCation .....coviiiiiiiiiiiiieec ettt sttt ns 31
5.13 ReCEIVING @GN OFFEF ..eoeiiiiiiiictetce e ettt e e e e e e e snreenrens 32
5.14 AcCePLiNg @n OFf@r.....cciiiiiiiieieci ettt et e e ettt et 32
5.15 RefUSING @N OFfEr .c..eiiuiiiriciiiiceeeecee ettt be e st eabeeabesaaeeareetnsns 32
5.16 Specialist hOUSING PrOVISION .......c.icvviiiiiiriiiiii ittt sttt e e e s e e e be e tesneenreeaaeenas 32
5.17 Applicants subject to public protection agreements........c.cccveceevieeirieceesiee e 33
5.18 The Involvement of Council MembDErs...........ccoeoirireininincinnce e 33
5.19 Allocations made by the Housing Provider............cccceovireriineniennininicsesee e s se e 33

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 2

Tudalen 17



t Ba

Information Boxes
BOX A Eligibility for a Social Housing Allocation

BOX B Local Connection
BOX C Urgent Housing Need

BOX D Housing Need

BOX E Reduced Priority

This document is available in Welsh and can be provided in other formats on request.

June 2018.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018

Tudalen 18

15

17

20

22

25

R}



f Ba fin

The Allocation Policy for Social Housing in Conwy, Denbighshire and
Flintshire.

The major social landlords operating in Conwy, Denbighshire and Flintshire have come together, with
the Local Authorities, to form a Partnership to manage applications for and allocations of social
housing.

The partners in the scheme are

*  Conwy County Borough Council

*  Denbighshire County Council

*  Flintshire County Council

*  Cartrefi Conwy

e Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd

*  North Wales Housing Association

*  Grwp Cynefin

*  Wales and West Housing Association

*  Clwyd Alyn Housing Association

* Ty Glas Housing Society, part of the Pennaf Group

All partners agree that there is a high demand for rented homes in the region and too few vacancies
to meet demand. We must be realistic about this. It requires us to do two things:

Firstly we will provide the best, most useful, consistent and accessible advice and information to
everyone who comes to us looking for housing. We aim to help customers make the most informed
choice about how to find a home to meet their needs. This advice must cover the whole range of
affordable housing options, including social housing, private rented accommodation, home
ownership and other alternatives.

Secondly, we will allocate our housing stock in a transparent, fair, consistent and accessible way,
which prioritises the people in our communities according to their housing needs and which meets
our legal requirements

Working together to these ends, we can share our strengths and good practice and place the
customer at the heart of everything we do. We will simplify the access route to advice and to
housing with one clear purpose: to help people find a home to meet their needs.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 4

Tudalen 19



|

o R}

PART 1 — POLICY STATEMENT

1. Introduction

1.1 Aims & Objectives
This document states how all applications for social housing will be prioritised for allocations in
Conwy, Denbighshire and Flintshire.

Social housing is housing provided by some local councils and registered, not for profit,
organisations. Rent levels, property standards and management standards are regulated by
government.

This allocation policy has been adopted by the major social landlords operating in the counties of
Conwy, Denbighshire and Flintshire.

The partners in the scheme are

*  Conwy County Borough Council

*  Denbighshire County Council

*  Flintshire County Council

e Cartrefi Conwy

*  North Wales Housing Association

*  Grwp Cynefin

*  Wales and West Housing Association

e Clwyd Alyn Housing Association

* Ty Glas Housing Society, part of the Pennaf Group
e Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd

The Partners agree to prioritise applicants and allocate social housing in the same way. Each County
will hold its own register of applicants. Applicants can apply for housing in different Counties, but
applicants will not necessarily have the same priority in all areas, because they may not have a local
connection to all areas.

The key objectives of the policy are that it-

* helps meet housing need in Conwy, Denbighshire and Flintshire

* gives priority to those in greatest housing need and with the strongest connection to the
area to which they are applying

* s easy for applicants and staff to understand

* consistently prioritises applicants in similar circumstances

* enables all applicants to be considered by all social housing providers with just one
application

e accommodates applicants preferences as far as possible

* makes best use of housing stock

* takes into account local circumstances

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 5

Tudalen 20



o e

e provides all applicants with advice about all their housing options

* provides support for applicants to make an application as required

1.2 Legal Context

The allocation policy is principally governed by The Housing Act 1996 and the Code of Guidance for
Homelessness and Allocations 2016 and Welsh Statutory Instruments 2014 No. 2603 (w. 257) -
Housing Wales — The Allocation of Homelessness (Eligibility) (Wales) Regulations 2014.

Other relevant legislation includes

*  Freedom of Information Act 2000

*  Equalities Act 2010

*  Social Care and Well Being Act 2014

*  Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014
*  Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015

1.3 The roles of the partners
*  Councils

The Councils in the Partnership are local Housing Authorities required by law to carry out
housing related duties and functions. They have a role to ensure that Social Housing is an
effective housing option for people on low incomes or who cannot rent or buy privately.
Each Council in the partnership must ensure social housing properties in their area are
allocated according to this policy.
The Councils must ensure that the allocation policy is fair. Fairness will include treating all
applications in a consistent manner, ensuring all applicants have an equal opportunity to
apply, and in a way which suits their personal needs.

So that everyone can see that allocations are made fairly, information about how properties
have been allocated will be published on Council websites, and there will be regular checks
to ensure the procedures are giving fair results.

Councils work in partnership with social housing providers to plan new housing
developments and the best use of housing stock. Councils monitor the activity of social
landlords to make sure standards are maintained and allocations are fair.

A Council can delegate the task of administering the housing register. The organisation
acting as the register administrator will be monitored by the Council to ensure banding and
allocation decisions meet the standards required. The register administrator can be a social
housing provider.

*  Housing Providers
Non-council social housing providers have a duty to co-operate with Local Authorities to
support the delivery of certain housing objectives e.g. to prevent and relieve homelessness.
The housing providers have agreed to allocate their vacant property in line with the policy.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 6

Tudalen 21



o

1.4 Equality
All Partners are committed to serving all applicants fairly and work positively to avoid discrimination
on the grounds of age, gender, sexual orientation, religion, nationality, disability or ethnic origin.

In order for us to monitor allocations for fairness, applicants are asked to provide details: age,
disability, gender and race.

All policies and changes in policy are assessed to ensure there is no unjustifiable negative impact on
sections of our community.

All partners are required to meet the Welsh Language Standards 2015. Applicants are encouraged to
use either Welsh or English. Applicants can express a preference for correspondence or service in
either language.

For applicants requiring information in an alternative format, e.g. large print, audio versions etc.
arrangements will be made to meet their needs on request

Prospective applicants who require support to complete the application process will be assisted,
according to their needs, on request.

The application process does not require an applicant to complete a form. Applicants will be spoken
to over the telephone, or face to face at our offices, or in exceptional circumstances, at another
place, e.g. hospital, by appointment.

1.5 Management of Information
Information provided by applicants will be confidential and kept securely.

However, applicants will be asked to allow their application information to be shared so that all
partners can consider their application.

Applicants may request a copy of information held by partners about their application, which will
include information provided by third parties unless there are exceptional circumstances where it is
necessary to protect the identity of the third party concerned. In such exceptional circumstances,
every effort will be made to convey to the applicant the information that has been obtained from a
third party in a reduced form.

1.6 Monitoring and Review of Allocations policy
The Allocations Policy is adopted and subject to the approval of Council members in the individual
Local Authorities.

The Boards of partner Housing Associations have signed up to the policy. The Boards ensure the
policy meets with the social objectives of their organisations. Each Housing Provider must report its
activities to its governing Boards and government regulator.

Senior officers of both the Council and housing provider organisations meet together as required to
form the Steering Commiittee. This Committee formally approves planned adjustments to the policy
recommended by the Operational Panel. The Operational panel meets regularly to discuss any
aspect of the implementation and delivery of the allocation policy.

Should the policy require major adjustment, the adjustment will not be made without consultation.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 7

Tudalen 22




o

Regular meetings with all partners are held to discuss operational decisions, information
management systems, and complex cases to ensure effective communication across the providers.

Statistical Information will be reported annually and published on the Local Authority websites.

1.7 Local Letting Policies.

The policy recognises that partners may wish to include policies designed to tackle local housing
issues through the use of local letting policies. All local lettings policies will be based on a sound
evidence base. Examples of local housing issues which may require local lettings policies include:

e Tackling localised anti-social behaviour

*  Correcting under occupation or overcrowding

*  Facilitating tenant employment through job related moves

e Creating a sustainable community on new housing developments

* Helping people to stay close to their own rural communities
Local lettings policies will be approved by the appropriate Local Authority and will be assessed for
fairness and equality of opportunity. Local letting policies may allow transfers for existing social
tenants even where they do not have priority under the allocation scheme.

Some properties, usually in defined locations, can only be let subject to additional occupation criteria
as they are subject to a Planning Obligation under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
for example in regeneration areas or, rarely, on new developments.

A list of housing schemes with Local Letting Allocations Policies is available on Council Websites,

2. The Housing Register

2.1 The Register

The housing register is a list of households who require housing. Each Local Authority has a register.
The register is ordered in accordance with this policy. Households on the register are prioritised in
bands according to need and local connection, and within bands by waiting time. Housing providers
with a vacancy go to the register to see who in the greatest need has been waiting the longest.

Decisions about where a household is placed on the register are taken by the register administrators.

The register is kept up to date. Households on the register will be reviewed every 6 months, or upon
a change in circumstances. New applicants join the register when their application is complete.
Applicants may move between priority bands. The date on which an applicant moved into a band
with greater priority will be the relevant date to determine their priority in that band. If an applicant
moved to a band with lower priority, the date of their original application will be the relevant date.

Applicants are responsible for keeping their application up to date. Failure to do so may result in a
reduction in priority.

If applicants in urgent housing need are not rehoused within 3 months, consideration will be given to
whether current housing stock will be able to meet the household’s needs. In cases where the

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 8

Tudalen 23




m

housing requirements are complex or not catered for in current stock, Partners will consider options
to procure, adapt or commission property to meet a need.

Prospective tenants not accepted onto the register because they are not in housing need, may apply
for vacancies where there is no demand from applicants on the register. Such vacancies are
advertised by the housing providers on the open market, e.g. at housing solutions using on-line
property rental sites or Council websites. Applicants not accepted onto the register can reapply at
any time if their circumstances change.

2.2 Who can Apply?

Anyone over 16 can apply for social housing, either as a sole or joint tenant. Households of more
than one person will have a lead applicant. Part of the application process will be to check that the
applicant household does not contain someone ineligible due to their immigration status or because
they are unsuitable to be a tenant because of serious unacceptable behaviour. All applicants will
need to show that they intend to occupy any social housing allocation as their only or principal
home.

2.3 Who can be included in the applicant’s household?
An applicant household can include:

a) members of the applicant’s family who normally resides with them,

b) any other person who might reasonably be expected to reside with them.

The circumstances of a child who is dependent both on the applicant and someone who does not live
with the applicant, will be looked at. For example, where there is a shared parenting arrangement, a
child who is reasonably accommodated with another parent will not be included within the
applicant’s household.

2.4 Transfer Applications

This policy applies to existing tenants seeking to transfer accommodation. Existing tenants who
want to move, will need to apply for a new allocation through the register. The same rules about
housing need will be applied to determine their priority.

2.5 Applications from Employees of Partner Organisations, Elected Members and

their close family relatives
Applicants must declare if they (or anyone in their household) are, or are close relatives of

*  Employees of partner local authorities or housing providers;

*  Elected Council Members; or

*  Members of a Tenants’ or Residents’ Associations.

* The following are close family member for the purpose of this policy:-
*  Spouse or civil partner

e Co habiting partners (including same sex partners)

* Parent

* Son/Daughter

*  Brother/Sister

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 9

Tudalen 24




? He 8-}

* Grandparent/Grandchild
*  Aunt/Uncle
*  Step & Half Relations

Where 2.5 applies, the allocation policy will not treat applicants differently, but their applications will
be subject to review to ensure the policy is followed in all cases.

2.6 Applications to amend existing social housing tenancies
This allocation policy does not cover situations where an existing tenant needs to amend their
existing social housing tenancy agreement. For example, adding a partner to the agreement.

3. Applying for Accommodation

3.1 Making an Application
Information about how to contact the housing register administrators in each County will be
publicised on the Council website and in other public areas.

There is no form to complete when applying for housing under the Common Allocation Policy.

Enquirers can attend Council offices in person, or discuss their needs by telephone. In exceptional
circumstances, arrangements can be made to visit prospective applicants, e.g. in hospital.

All enquirers will be asked about their household circumstances. We call this process ‘Triage’. Where
an applicant may be homeless or threatened with homelessness within 56 days, their application will
form part of the service offered by the Local Authority to prevent and relieve homelessness.

The administration of the social housing allocation and the delivery of services to those threatened
with, or who are faced with, homelessness are closely related. Staff from either the homelessness
and/or housing provider teams may be involved with a case

3.2 Housing Options
All enquirers will receive advice about all the housing options which might be suitable for them. This
may include advice about

* Affordable ownership schemes

* Intermediate rent schemes

¢ Private renting

* Schemes to help people move out of the district

* Home improvement schemes or adaptation services which enable people to stay in their
existing home

e Supported housing or support at home
* Sheltered housing or extra care housing

*  Gypsy and Traveller sites with permanent pitches

Enquirers will receive information about the application process and how homes are allocated.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 10

Tudalen 25



o

Those who wish to make an application for social housing will be advised about

* whether they are likely to have a priority for housing and

* whether housing suitable for their needs is likely to be available for them in the areas of
their choice and

* how long until such housing is likely to be available

3.3 Eligibility
All applicants and their household members will be verified to ensure they are eligible for an
allocation of social housing.

The Housing Act 1996, as amended by more recent legislation (Housing Act (Wales) 2014) states that
a Local Authority must not make an allocation of social housing to an ineligible person.

Applicants can be ineligible due to their immigration status or due to unacceptable behaviour. See
Box A.

Applicants will need to provide evidence of their identity and former conduct.

The Register administrators will act reasonably and consider each application on its merits. Decision
makers will take into account the applicant’s personal circumstances (and those of the applicant’s
household), including health and medical needs, dependent’s needs and any factors relevant to the
application. In particular, the partners will consider any mitigating circumstances relating to mental
or physical disability, or mental health.

Previous seriously unacceptable behaviour may not justify a decision to treat the applicant as
ineligible where the applicant can show that the behaviour has improved.

Applicants whose unacceptable behaviour does not meet the criteria to make them ineligible, will be
able to apply for housing, but their household may be given a reduced priority until the register
administrator is satisfied that their behaviour has improved to the extent that it will no longer have a
detrimental impact on their conduct of a tenancy.

Applicants deemed ineligible for housing will be provided with advice and guidance regarding their
housing options from the Housing Options Team when they contact the service.

Applicants deemed ineligible for housing will be notified of the decision and the reason(s) in writing.
They will also be informed of their right to request a review and their further right to appeal any
decision made after the review.

Applicants found ineligible because of unacceptable behaviour can reapply at any time, but will not
be eligible until they can show that their behaviour is now satisfactory.

3.4 Choice and Preference

Applicants will be asked to express a preference for the area they wish to live in, and the type of
property. Not all areas have social housing. Not all areas can provide properties of the preferred
type. Applicants will be advised about the potential availability of properties when they apply, and
on request. Applicants can change their preferences. However, when considering the suitability of
vacant properties for an applicant, it may not be possible to accommodate all an applicant’s

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 11

Tudalen 26




|

o e

preferences. Applicants’ preference for areas where there is currently no social housing provision
will be noted and considered when planning new developments.

3.5 Support to make an application

Partners will ensure that applicants with support needs are provided with appropriate support to
make their application. Where necessary, partner housing providers will work with social care,
Supporting People, health services and other agencies to agree how to support the applicant.

3.6 Decision timescales

Once all the necessary supporting information has been received by the register administrator the
decision about whether the applicant will be placed on the register and in which priority band will be
taken within 20 working days.

3.7 Notification of decision
Applicants will be informed in writing of acceptance onto the register and their priority banding.

3.8 Applicant’s rights to be informed, to request a review and make a complaint

An applicant has the right to be informed, upon request, of any decision about the facts of their case
which is likely to be, or has been, taken into account in considering whether to allocate housing
accommodation to them.

3.9 Requesting to see what information is held on a housing application

Applicants may request a copy of all information held by partners about their application as a
‘Subject Access Application’. This will include information provided by third parties (unless there are
exceptional circumstances and the identity of the third party must be protected). Should third party
information require protection, every effort will be made to convey information in a reduced form. A
Subject Access Application will normally be free. Unwarranted, unfounded or repetitive requests
may incur an administration fee.

3.10 Requesting that a decision relating to an applicant’s priority on the housing

register, or any allocation of housing, is reviewed.
An applicant has the right to request a review of any decision made in relation to their housing
application, including any decision:

a) about the facts of their case which is likely to be, or has been, taken into account in considering
whether to allocate housing accommodation to them;

b) as to their eligibility for the allocation of social housing;
c) as to the assessment of their application in relation to the banding scheme;
d) made in relation to removing an applicant from the register

e) made in relation to reducing priority;

Applicants will have 14 days to request a review, during which time they shall be suspended from the
register.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 12

Tudalen 27



o L

The decision to be reviewed will be considered by a different or senior officer from the relevant
register administrator. The reviewing officer has 28 days to consider the circumstances and respond.

If the applicant is not satisfied by the decision of the reviewing officer, the matter can be considered
by the Operational Panel which meets at least monthly. The panel have up to 28 days to consider the
circumstances and respond.

3.11 Requesting a review of a decision made in relation to a decision outside of the

scope of this policy

Decisions made by a local authority partner in relation to an application for assistance because an
applicant is homeless or threatened with homelessness, are subject to different review procedures.
Applicants will be told about how to request a review of these decisions in the decision notification
letter.

3.12 Making a Complaint about how an application has been handled

An applicant who is unhappy about the way their application has been handled, or the behaviour of
staff, should make a complaint using the complaints procedure of the organisation handling their
application. Information about how to do this will be available from the organisation concerned. If
an applicant is not satisfied by the response to a complaint they can take the matter to the Local
Authority

Ombudsman (details of making such a complaint are available from the relevant Local Authority).

3.13 False or misleading information

Applicants who give false or misleading information may have their application rejected or their
tenancy terminated. In some cases this may also result in criminal prosecution, substantial fines and
even imprisonment.

3.14 Keeping an application up to date
It is the responsibility of the applicant to keep their information up to date.

Applicants must contact their local Authority if, for example,

* they change their contact information: telephone numbers or email address
* if they move house,

* aperson leaves or joins their household;

* their financial circumstances change

*  Theirimmigration status changes

3.15 Keeping the register up to date

When applications are reviewed by the Register Administrator, applicant households will be
contacted to confirm they are still in housing need. Those still in housing need will have their details
checked and their priority banding reviewed.

Applicants who fail to respond to letters asking about their current needs may be removed from the
register.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 13

Tudalen 28



|

) e

3.16 Removing applications from the register.
Applicants may be removed from the register if

* they have provided false or misleading information or not told the Partnership about
relevant information

* they have refused 2 reasonable offers

e they don't reply to application review letters within 14 days

Applicants will be advised in writing of a decision to remove them from the register. They have a
right to request a review of the decision, and details of how to do so will be noted in the decision

letter. After 14 days, if no request for a review is received, the applicant will be removed from the
register.

Applicants will be able to reapply but may be subject to reduced priority. Their application date will
be the date of the new application.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy —June 2018 14

Tudalen 29



o

BOX A Eligibility for a social housing allocation

Ineligible applicants

There are two classes of ineligible person.

1) Persons from abroad
Unless the applicant is already a secure, introductory or assured tenant of housing allocated
by a Welsh housing authority, applicants will be ineligible if they are

subject to immigration control, unless they belong to a group granting them eligibility e.g.
those with refugee status; those granted Humanitarian Protection; and those with
Discretionary or Exceptional Leave to Remain.

persons from abroad who are not subject to immigration control and who are not habitually
resident in the Common Travel Area (i.e. The UK, Channel Islands, Isle of Man and the
Republic of Ireland) (Exceptions apply)

excluded from entitlement to Universal Credit or Housing Benefit by the Immigration and
Asylum Act 1999.

Further Information for applicants and advisors can be found in

Allocation of Housing and Homelessness (Eligibility) (Wales) Regulations
2014, and

Allocation of Housing and Homelessness (Eligibility) (Wales)
(Amendment) Regulations 2017

2) Persons who have engaged in serious unacceptable behaviour
If applicants, members of their household, or their visitors have engaged in serious
unacceptable behaviour that renders them unsuitable to be a tenant of a partner landlord.

The only behaviour that can be regarded as unacceptable is behaviour by the person that
would have entitled a local authority to an outright possession order, if the person had been
a secure tenant of the local authority at the time.

In assessing whether an applicant is ineligible due to unacceptable behaviour, the partner
landlord will consider:

1. Where there is evidence of unacceptable behaviour, was it serious enough for a possession
order to have been granted (which includes consideration of the statutory discretionary
grounds for possession and questions of reasonableness)?

Was the behaviour serious enough to render the applicant or household member
unsuitable to be a tenant (which involves consideration as to whether an immediate
possession order was made or might have been made as opposed to a suspended order)?

Does the behaviour continue to be unacceptable at the time of application?

The Common Housing Allocation Policy —June 2018 15

Tudalen 30




|

m

PART 2 — THE BANDING SCHEME

This policy is founded on the principle that vacancies will be allocated to eligible applicants in
housing need, with priority going to applicant households who have a local connection.

4.1 Priority Bands
The policy uses a banding scheme to prioritise applicants according to their circumstances.

The priority bands and local connection

Band Degree of Housing need Local Connection

1 Urgent housing need according the Yes

criteria in Box C
(unless homeless as a result of abuse)

2 Housing need according to the Yes
criteria in Box D

3 Urgent housing need according to No
the criteria in Box C

4 Housing need according to the No

criteria in Box D and

Reduced priority cases Yes

Priority can change as circumstances change, so applicants may move between bands. Applicants
within each band will be prioritised according to the date order of their application or the date on
which they moved from a lower to a higher band.

4.2 Local Connection

Eligible applicants with a local connection to the Council area to which they are applying, will be
prioritised above those with no local connections (unless an applicant is fleeing abuse and relocation
is required to keep them safe).

An applicant may have a local connection to one partner local Authority, but not to another,
resulting in a different banding decision on the different housing registers.

An applicant’s local connection can change over time. Applicants must keep their applications up to
date.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy —June 2018 16

Tudalen 31




m

Housing Provider partners are able to specify additional local connection criteria for certain
vacancies in line with Local Lettings policies.

BOX B Local Connection

A local connection is created when the applicant or a household member
* Has been resident in the Local authority area for the previous 12 months.
* Has been resident in the local Authority area for 3 out of the previous 5 years.

* Has family associations in the area. Family association normally arise when the
applicant or household member has either a parent, adult child, brother or
sister who live in the local Authority area, and have done so for at least 5 years,
at the date of application. Both the applicant and locally residing relative must
indicate a wish to be near each other.

* Provides support for or receive support from some person or specialist
provision in the local authority area.

e Has been in employment in the local authority area for the last twelve months.

* Has been offered a job in the local authority area but have a disability and are
unable to take up the job offer because of the difficulty of finding adequate
accessible housing in the area.

* Needs to move to the local authority area so that a member of their household
with a disability can attend a school or receive specialist support, but are unable
to do so because of the difficulty in finding adequate accessible housing in the
area. The need must be as a consequence of the disability and the need to move
to that local authority area must be evidenced.

* Is serving in the Armed Forces and is either employed or resident in the local
authority area.

* Isservinginthe Armed Forces or is a former members of the Armed Forces, not
currently employed or resident in the local authority area but has previously
been resident in the local authority area, including residency as a result of a
former posting in the area while serving in the Armed Forces.

4.3 Housing Need - Reasonable Preference
The allocation policy bases an applicant’s priority on their housing need.

The law states that the following applicants must be given ‘reasonable preference’ under any
allocation scheme:

a) those who are homeless within the meaning of part 2 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014.

b) those owed any duty by a Local Authority under s 66; s 73 or s 75 of the Housing (Wales)
Act 2014 or
(if they applied for help because they were homeless before 27 April 2015),
those owed a duty by a housing authority under section 190(2), 192(3), 193(2), or

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 17

Tudalen 32




o e

195(2) of the Housing Act 1996)

c) those occupying insanitary or overcrowded conditions or otherwise living in
unsatisfactory housing conditions

d) those who need to move on medical or welfare grounds, including grounds relating to
disability

e) those who need to move to a particular locality in the district of the authority, where
failure to meet that need would cause hardship to themselves or to others.

Alocal authority can identify other types of household in housing need so long as such classes of
household do not dominate.

4.4 Urgent housing need

A Local Authority can determine households with urgent needs. Additional priority will be given
where the applicants have an urgent housing need. Applicants with an urgent housing need and a
local connection to the area will be in Band 1. Applicants in urgent housing need but lacking a local
connection will be in Band 3. Examples of an applicant in urgent housing need are given in Box C.

4.5 Housing need

Households with a housing need that is not urgent will include those in the reasonable preference
categories, except those subject to reduced priority, and displaced agricultural workers. They will be
placed in Band 2 if they have a local connection and Band 4 if they lack a local connection. Examples
of households in housing need are given in Box D.

4.6 Reduced priority
The Register Administrator can reduce priority for a social housing allocation in certain
circumstances, for example

* Applicants deemed to be unsatisfactory tenants or those who may have deliberately
worsened their housing circumstances;

* Applicants with sufficient financial resources to meet their housing needs in the housing
market.

* Homeless applicants who are deemed intentionally homeless. Examples of where priority is
reduced are given in box E.

When deciding whether to reduce priority, the register administrator will act reasonably and
consider each application on its merits. It must have regard to the applicant’s personal
circumstances (and those of the applicant’s household), including health and medical needs,
dependents and any other factors relevant to the application. The decision maker must consider any
mitigating circumstances relating to mental or physical disability, or mental health.

When considering applicants with previous poor behaviour, a decision to reduce priority may not be
justified, if the applicant’s conduct can now be shown to have improved.

Applicants who have their priority reduced because of unacceptable behaviour, who can present
satisfactory evidence of an improvement in their behaviour can have the reduction in priority

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 18

Tudalen 33



.|

@ e

removed. In this situation, the date of the application for determining priority within the new band
will be the date they are placed into the new band.

Decisions to reduce priority must be approved by a senior officer of the administering organisation.
Cases of reduced priority will be monitored and the process held under review.

Where a decision to reduce the priority of an application is taken, the applicant will be placed in
Band 4. Applicants already in Band 4 cannot have their priority reduced.

In circumstances where an applicant has their priority reduced, applicants will be provided with
appropriate advice, guidance, and support.

Applicants will be notified in writing of any decision to reduce the priority of their application and
the reasons for it. If an applicant wishes to appeal the decision, applicants have the right to ask for
the decision to be reviewed. The applicant will be informed about the outcome of a review.

4.7 No priority

Applicants who are not in housing need according to the reasonable preference criteria (examples of
which are given in Box C or D), will not be given any priority. They will not be placed in an allocation
band or recorded on the housing register.

Should any vacancies not be filled from housing applicants on the register, properties will be
advertised on the open market. Applicants with no priority will be able to apply for these tenancies
but will need to satisfy the eligibility and local connection criteria.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 19

Tudalen 34



1]

BOX C Urgent Housing Need

Applicant households with Urgent housing need will be in

BAND 1 (with a local connection) or BAND 3 (with No local connection)

Examples of URGENT housing need

1) Urgent medical, welfare or disability related need.
Applicants whose household includes someone who

a) has a medical condition which is life threatening or likely to become so, and which is directly linked
to their housing conditions and is likely to improve with re housing.

b) has been assessed by the relevant practitioner as having a need to move urgently to an accessible
property.

c) hasaserious physical or mentalillness, disability or medical condition or behavioural disorder which
is causing serious dysfunction to themselves or the family unit such that they are completely unable
to cope at their present accommodation and re housing would alleviate the problem. For example
a terminal illness or advanced progressive condition.

d) is hospitalised and is unable to return to their home as it is totally unsuitable for their long term
needs by way of design, location and/or is unsuitable for disabled adaptations.

e) is disabled and unable to access essential facilities within the property e.g.
bathing or WC, or access to the property itself is totally unsuitable. The property cannot be
economically adapted to meet their needs.

f) needs to move to provide support to a relative or person with serious illness, disability or medical
condition and that person can only cope in their present accommodation with the applicant’s
support.

g) is living in overcrowded accommodation which leaves a person vulnerable to serious infection.

2) Leaving the Armed Forces
* A member of the applicant’s household needs to move to suitable adapted accommodation
because of a serious injury, medical condition or disability sustained as a result of service in the
Armed Forces.
* An applicant needing accommodation because of leaving the armed forces and the loss of military
accommodation, who has had no settled accommodation in the last 12 months. People who have
left the armed forces under Discharge as of Right.

3) Applicants accommodated in accredited supported housing where the applicant is able to
sustain a tenancy independently.
4) Young people leaving the care of the Local Authority.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 20

Tudalen 35



f fa fin

5) Urgent Cases where the household needs access to social housing to prevent a
child from being taken into/remaining in care.

Examples include
* Foster parents who urgently need accommodation to take a child

*  Where a child care plan identifies the need for accommodation to prevent the child being looked
after by the Authority.

6) Existing tenants who are either under occupying by one or more bedrooms and wish
to transfer to a smaller property, or who are occupying an adapted property which they do
not need

provided that one of the following applies:

*  They are suffering financial hardship as a result of welfare reform;

*  Their moving would release a property for someone in urgent need who would otherwise have to
wait an unreasonably long time to be re-housed.

7} Homeless due to abuse or probable abuse requiring urgent re-housing

Those deemed homeless as a result of abuse as defined by s 58 (1), Housing (Wales) Act 2014 and
owed a duty under s75 of the Act. This includes those who have experienced abuse at, or outside,
the home; and those who, if they remained in their accommodation, would probably experience
abuse. This includes instances of hate crime and threats arising from acting as a witness.

8) Exceptional cases of urgent need where the circumstances or the urgency of the
circumstances are not dealt with elsewhere in this scheme

Such cases may include transfer tenants. Cases will be decided on an individual basis. Exceptional cases
will be monitored.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 21

Tudalen 36



m

BOX D Housing Need

Applicants with a Housing need will be placed in
BAND 2 if they have a local connection (see Box A) or

BAND 4 if they do not have a local connection (except homeless households requiring
rehousing due to abuse) or despite their housing need, have had their priority reduced.

1) Applicants who are homeless

Households who have been assessed by a Local Authority Housing Options Team and
found to be homeless within the meaning of s.55 Housing (Wales) Act 2014. The Housing
{Wales) Act 2014 defines a person as homeless if they have no accommodation in the UK
or elsewhere which is available for his or her occupation and which that person has a legal
right to occupy.

Accommodation is available for a person to occupy only if it is available for occupation by them
together with:

a)any other person who normally resides with them as a member of the family, or
b) any other person who might reasonably be expected to reside with them.

A person is also homeless if
* they have accommodation but cannot secure entry to it, or

* the accommodation is a moveable structure, vehicle or vessel adapted for human
habitation (such as a caravan or house boat) and there is nowhere where it can be placed
legally in order to provide accommodation.

* A person who has accommodation is to be treated as homeless where a Local Authority
determines it would not be reasonable for them to continue to occupy that
accommodation

2) Applicants who are threatened with homelessness
Applicants owed a duty by a local Housing Authority under s66, of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014,
for whom an application for social housing has been deemed an appropriate ‘reasonable step’ in
their personal housing plan by the Local Authority.

3) Applicants living in unsatisfactory conditions
Applicants whose current property:

* lacks a bathroom with facilities or the facilities are located in an insanitary location e.g.
within kitchen.

* lacks a kitchen and/or appropriate facilities; or lacks an inside W/C.
* lacks a hot or cold water supply to the property due to defect with the property;
* lacks an electrical supply due to defect with property;

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018

Tudalen 37

22



m

* lacks a gas supply due to defect with property where such a supply is required to operate
existing or necessary services, such as heating.

* Applicants who share facilities with other persons who are not part of their household
on a permanent basis. This applies to the sharing of a kitchen, bathroom/shower or toilet.

. Applicants living in overcrowded housing. A housing situation is deemed to be
overcrowded if it lacks at least one bedroom. This must be on a permanent basis. Please see
the table ‘Bedroom requirements by household type’ below.

. Applicants who have been referred by Environmental Health for re-housing because
they are living in accommodation where category 1 hazards exist.

Note: All applicants residing in insanitary or hazardous housing will be referred to environmental
health in order to resolve the problem and enable the applicant to remain in their home. The
applicant would only be referred for re-housing if, despite their best efforts, it is the opinion of
Environmental Health that the problem cannot be resolved within a reasonable period of time.

5} Medical or welfare grounds (including grounds relating to disability)
. Applicants whose household includes someone with a medical
. condition which is directly linked to unsuitable housing and where rehousing is necessary

to significantly improve their health.

e Current accommodation presents access problems to a member of the household which have
a detrimental impact on their welfare, which cannot be resolved in the current property and
would be significantly alleviated if they were suitably re-housed. Such cases would be assessed
by the relevant practitioner as requiring a move to an accessible property.

. Applicants whose household includes someone who has social care needs which are not
being met and re-housing is necessary to significantly improve their care.

6) People who need to move to a particular locality, where a failure to do so would cause
hardship For example

. It is unreasonable for the applicant to stay in their current property due to exceptional
financial hardship.

. The applicant or member of their household is at risk of being admitted to residential
care or hospital if they cannot be rehoused.

. The applicant needs to move due to a relationship breakdown and there is a need to
safeguard and promote the welfare of children.

. The applicant is a vulnerable care leaver, and it is determined that their housing is best
met by the provision of long term settled housing. Applicants must be a former ‘relevant child’
as defined by the Children Leaving Care Act 2000.

. The applicant or member of their household has permanent employment which cannot
continue unless they live in a specific locality within the area and are otherwise adequately
housed.

. The applicant is giving or receiving essential support, which can only be delivered if they
live in a specific locality within the area.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018

Tudalen 38

23



2 BRa

R}

7) Displaced Agricultural Waorkers

The dwelling from which an agricultural worker is displaced is needed to accommodate another
agricultural worker and they need to re-house the displaced worker in the interests of efficient
agriculture.

8) Exceptional case of housing need where the circumstances are not dealt with elsewhere
in this scheme

Such cases may or may not be existing tenants seeking a transfer. Each case will be judged, authorised
and recorded according to the agreed procedure and regularly monitored

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018

Tudalen 39

24



.|

m

e

BOX E Reduced Priority

Applicants with reduced priority will be placed in Band 4

1. If an applicant household’s behaviour affects their suitability to be tenants.
For example

¢ Applicants who have engaged in anti-social behaviour and who have not
maintained a satisfactory undertaking to address that behaviour

*  Applicants who have been convicted of using their home for illegal or immoral
purposes

*  Current tenants who have been subject to action for a breach in the terms of
their tenancy agreement.

*  When current tenants are wishing to transfer, but their current property is in
such poor condition, that it cannot be re-let within a reasonable timescale

* Applicants who have rent arrears owing to a current or previous landlord and
who have not maintained a satisfactory arrangement to repay the debt.

e Applicants who have deliberately provided false or misleading information or
failed to disclose information relevant to their application. In these cases
applicants will be asked to complete a new application. The date of this new
application will be taken and they may be given reduced preference for the new
application.

* Applicants who have refused two reasonable offers. In this case, applicants will
be removed from the register and if they re-apply may be given reduced priority.

e Applicants who are deemed to have deliberately worsened their housing
circumstances. For example, this may apply where an applicant gives up settled
accommodation in order to move into less settled or overcrowded
accommodation.

*  Applicants who have behaved in a way which affects their suitability to be a
tenant (or whose household contains a member who has done this).

2. If an applicant household has sufficient financial resources to meet its own
housing need;
¢ this will be assessed on a case by case basis.

* Applicants with sufficient financial resources to meet their housing needs. This
may apply, for example, when the person has legal or financial interests in a
property, or sufficient income or savings.

3. If an applicant household is found to have deliberately worsened its own
housing circumstances

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018

Tudalen 40

25



-]

wm

--F-)

For example

* by deliberately moving to a property they know will make them overcrowded;

* by deliberately damaging their accommodation to make it uninhabitable or
resulting in eviction; by not prioritising affordable rental payments, resulting in
eviction;

¢ Asking a landlord to start procedures to repossess property with the intention
of becoming homeless;

e Deliberately doing something (or not doing something) they knew could lead to
the loss of their accommodation.

4. Homeless applicants found intentionally homelessness
Partner Local Authorities have decided to have regard to whether households have
become homeless intentionally for all classes of applicant households when
considering their duty to the household under s 75 of the Housing (Wales) Act. A
homeless applicant can be found intentionally homeless if they deliberately do or
fail to do anything, in consequence of which, they cease to occupy
accommodation which is available for their occupation, and which it would have been
reasonable for them to continue to occupy.
Acts done in good faith by someone who was not aware of any relevant fact does not
amount to a deliberate intention to become homeless. Applicants’ circumstances at
the time they acted or failed to act will be taken into consideration.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018

Tudalen 41

26



] ﬁm i

PART 3 - ALLOCATIONS

5. Allocating Properties

5.1  Allocating Properties according to banding priority and waiting time

Vacant properties will be offered first to applicants in Band 1. Of all applicants for whom the vacant
property is suitable, the household who has been waiting in that band the longest will be offered the
property. The applicant has an opportunity to refuse the offer, but if accepted, subject to
circumstances being verified, will be allocated the property.

If the property is not suitable for any household in Band 1, the property will be matched with
suitable applicant households in Band 2.

Only if there is no suitable household in Band 2 will households in Band 3 be considered and so on.
5.2 Matching applicants to properties

Properties will be matched according to the household’s preferences for location and household
make up.

5.3 Confirming the members of the household
The housing provider will ensure that the household members are reasonably part of the household.
This would normally include:

c) amember of the applicant’s family who normally resides with them,

d) any other person who might reasonably be expected to reside with them.

The circumstances of a child who is dependent both on the applicant and someone who does not
live with the applicant, will be looked at. For example, where there is a shared parenting
arrangement, a child who is reasonably accommodated with another parent, will not be included
within the applicant’s household.

Applicants will need to provide evidence that family members normally reside with them, or that it is
reasonable for a person to reside with them.

An applicant will be able to ask for a review of any decision about who is in their household.

5.4 Duplicate applications
Individuals can only be included on one application at a time.

5.5 Household make up and entitlement for bedrooms

The table below details the property size suitable for each household type. However, each property
will have variations in layout and bedroom sizes which may impact on how many people it can
accommodate.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy —June 2018 27

Tudalen 42



m

Bedroom requirements by household type.

Household make up Number of
Bedrooms

Single person 1 or bedsit

Pregnant Woman (in couple or single) lor2

Couple 1

Couple or single person with baby under 12 months 2

Couple or single parent with 1 child under 16 2

Two person household (not in a couple) 2

Couple or single parent with 2 children under 16 of the same sex. 2

Couple or single parent with two children of the opposite sex under 10 2

Couple or single parent with 2 children under 16 of opposite sex, with at 3

least 1 child over 10

Couple or single parent with 3 children under 16 3

Couple or single parent with 4 children under 16 if the children are: 3

-all same sex

-2 boys and 2 girls

-3 one sex and 1 of the other where 2 children of different sex are

under 10.

Couple or single parent with 4 children under 16 comprising 4

3 of one sex and 1 of the other sex, where either the 3 of one sex are

all over 10 or the child of the other sex is over 10

Couple or single parent with 5 children under 16 4

Couple or single parent with more than 5 children under 16 4

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018

Tudalen 43

28



-]

wm

Bedroom requirements by household type.

Household make up Number of
Bedrooms

Single person 1 or bedsit

Pregnant Woman (in couple or single) lor2

Couple 1

Couple or single person with baby under 12 months 2

Couple or single parent with 1 child under 16 2

Two person household (not in a couple) 2

Couple or single parent with 2 children under 16 of the same sex. 2

Couple or single parent with two children of the opposite sex under 10 2

Couple or single parent with 2 children under 16 of opposite sex, with at 3

least 1 child over 10

Couple or single parent with 3 children under 16 3

Couple or single parent with 4 children under 16 if the children are: 3

-all same sex

-4 boys and 2 girls

-5 one sex and 1 of the other where 2 children of different sex are

under 10.

Couple or single parent with 4 children under 16 comprising 4

3 of one sex and 1 of the other sex, where either the 3 of one sex are

all over 10 or the child of the other sex is over 10

Couple or single parent with 5 children under 16 4

Couple or single parent with more than 5 children under 16 4

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018

Tudalen 44

e

29



w

*  Families with a child due to turn 10 within 12 months, where there is currently a boy and girl
sharing, may be considered for an additional bedroom, or where pregnancy, or the age of
household members mean that the household would qualify for a larger property within a
reasonable period of time. In such circumstances, applicants may be allowed to register for
properties which they would currently under-occupy.

* Due to the shortage of 4 bedroomed properties, households requiring 4 bedrooms may be
considered for larger 3 bedroomed properties with a second reception room. E.g. a separate
dining room, that could reasonably be used as a bedroom.

e Same sex family members over 16 years (not couples) are entitled to their own room.

* Applicants who require an additional bedroom for a non-resident carer will normally be
registered for properties with an additional bedroom

¢ Where there is a limited supply of properties with fewer bedrooms relative to demand, and
a reasonable supply of properties with more bedrooms relative to demand, applicants may
be considered for, and offered, properties with more bedrooms than they require;

*  Where an applicant is in urgent need, but the supply of suitable properties is limited, they
may be considered for, and offered, properties with more bedrooms than they require;

*  Where an applicant is homeless, but the supply of suitable properties is limited, they may be
considered for and offered properties with more bedrooms than they require.
NOTE: should applicants be considered for a property with more bedrooms than they require, the
applicant’s ability to afford the rent would be taken into account in determining whether to offer the
property.

5.6 Homeless Applicants to whom a statutory homeless duty is owed.

Offers of accommodation made to homeless applicant households to discharge a duty under the
Housing (Wales) Act need to be suitable taking into account all the relevant circumstances of the
applicant household. Homeless applicants will be advised in a letter at the time the offer is made
that the accommodation offered is considered suitable, and the consequences of unreasonably
refusing the offer.

5.7 16 and 17 year old applicants

Applicants of 16 or 17 years of age cannot hold a tenancy in their own right. They will need to
provide a Guarantor. The Guarantor agrees to ensure that the responsibilities of the tenant are met
and legally holds the tenancy ‘on trust’ for the young person. If the young person does not pay the
rent, or other charges arising from the tenancy, the Guarantor will be responsible. When the young
person turns 18, the tenancy will become their full responsibility. The housing provider will need to
check that a prospective Guarantor (a person or an organisation) can afford to take that role. If the
applicant is unable to provide a Guarantor, the housing provider may refuse to offer a tenancy.
Young applicants will be advised about this at their housing options interview.

5.8 Older applicants

Applicant households who meet criteria for schemes designated for older persons will be considered
for vacancies as they arise and according to their priority. In some circumstances a younger applicant
may be considered if an allocation to them would not detract from the purposes of the housing

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 30

Tudalen 45




o

scheme. Warden and tenancy support services may be available to applicants in general needs
properties.

Social Housing Providers operate ‘Extra Care’ Housing schemes for older households needing social
care support. Allocation of Extra care housing is not through the Common Allocation Policy.
Prospective applicants apply directly to the housing provider. Applicants for social housing for whom
Extra Care schemes are appropriate will be advised about them at the Housing Options interview.

5.9 Gypsy and Traveller applicants

Applicant households who are Gypsies, Irish Travellers or other Travellers can, in addition to the
Housing Register in their Local Authority, apply to be included on the register for Gypsy and Traveller
pitches on designated permanent sites. Information about the services available in an Authority area
will be provided at the Housing Options interview.

5.10 Applicants accommodated in care or approved supported housing

Applicant households who are in local authority care or accredited supported housing will be advised
about all suitable housing options. Social housing cannot meet the needs of all persons leaving care
or accredited supported housing. Applicants may apply before they are ready to move on.

5.11 Applicant households requiring adapted or accessible properties

Applicants on the housing register with a disability will be assessed by an Occupational Therapist to
determine their needs. Wheel chair users and those with restricted mobility or other conditions
requiring adaptations will be identified on the register.

The existing home of applicants may be assessed for the suitability of adapting it for the applicant.

Where a property has been adapted for wheelchairs, when it becomes vacant, suitable applicants on
the register who need a wheel chair accessible home will be considered first.

Where a property has features which would suit those with restricted mobility such as level entry,
stair lifts, grab rails, a decision to override an allocation to a household not requiring such
adaptations may be made with the approval of a senior officer, in order to offer the property to a
household with a need for the adaptations.

Where a general needs property becomes vacant and it can be adapted, it will be offered to the
household highest on the register. Any adaptations required will be planned at that point if it is
feasible for the housing provider to carry them out.

Current tenants not requiring an adapted property, where someone requiring an adapted property is
in urgent housing need and would otherwise wait an unreasonably long time to be rehoused, can
apply to be rehoused and placed in Band 1 to facilitate freeing up the adapted property.

Arrangements are in place in each local Authority to consider the response to applicants whose
needs are not currently being met by the local housing stock see 5.14.

5.12 Verification

Applicants are required to inform the register administrator of any relevant changes in their
circumstances, and the register is reviewed regularly to check that applicants on the register are still
in housing need. Every applicant household will also have their circumstances verified by housing a
provider before an allocation is made. Verification checks may include a visit to an applicant’s

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 31

Tudalen 46




|

wm

current home, and making enquiries of third parties such as former landlords and health
professionals.

5.13 Receiving an offer

Applicants who receive a suitable offer of housing will have that offer in writing, but this does not
mean they will not also be contacted by telephone or email to discuss the offer and arrange for
viewings.

Changes in circumstances rendering an offer unsuitable, discovered at the offer stage, will be
referred back to the Register Administrator.

5.14 Accepting an offer
Applicants will be asked to respond to the offer and before the deadline provided in the offer letter.

Applicants will be given a reasonable time to consult with all household members and consider the
offer. Applicants will have 3 working days before the offer is withdrawn, and the next applicant is
considered.

5.15 Refusing an Offer
Applicants can refuse an offer of housing but there may be serious consequences in doing so. A
refusal may affect the applicant’s banding or eligibility to remain on the register.

The applicant will be asked the reason(s) for declining the offer. The housing provider will consider if
the reason for refusal is reasonable or not.

Applicants who have unreasonably refused 2 offers will be removed from the register on the
grounds that the applicant’s requirements are unlikely to be met from the housing register

The applicant will be able to request a review of the decision that any offer has been unreasonably
refused or to remove them from the register.

5.16 Specialist housing provision
The vast majority of applicants’ housing need will be met from the available housing stock.

Some applicant households require properties to meet needs arising from disability or household
size: for example, to accommodate wheel chairs, fit bed hoists, stair lifts and accessible bathing
rooms and some households require with more than 4 bedrooms. Such housing is in particularly
short supply within the social housing stock.

Where an applicant households’ needs cannot be met from the available stock or they have been in
Band 1 for 3 months, their case will be considered by the Local Authority housing and social care
teams and partner landlords to explore, if cost effective and appropriate,

e whether any available, or soon to be available, properties can be adapted,

*  Whether a suitable property in the private sector could be secured for the applicant, either
directly with the private landlord or indirectly through a social lettings service; leased and
sublet by a social landlord or (rarely) purchased by a Housing Association to use for a specific
household or household type.

*  Whether opportunity exists to plan specific adaptations for a household when building new
properties.

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 32

Tudalen 47




?2 He R}

*  Whether the applicant household could form separate households facilitating the timely
accommodation of a member requiring adaptations with no detriment to the wider
household.

However, it is possible that some households will not be able to be housed by a social landlord.
Housing Options staff will assist these households.

5.17 Applicants subject to public protection agreements

Housing applicants with an offending background may be subject to Multi Agency Public Protection
Agreements (MAPPA). In these cases, allocations will be informed by appropriate risk management
requirements to the Community and individuals.

5.18 The Involvement of Council Members

Elected Council Members are not allowed to be directly involved in decisions to allocate properties.
They may act as advocates or advisors to constituent applicants making an application, only if the
applicant has given written authority for them to do so. Information about applicants on the register
is not shared with Council Members.

Council members and Housing Provider Board Members have the opportunity to scrutinise the
policy prior to its adoption.

5.19 Allocations made by the Housing Provider

In exceptional circumstances, a housing provider may allocate properties to facilitate the
management of its stock, for example, to move a household whose current home needs major work,
or to protect a vulnerable household. The number and reasons for such moves are recorded and
scrutinised by the Local Authority to ensure that they are kept to a minimum and do not impact on
the fairness of allocations overall.

June 2018

The Common Housing Allocation Policy — June 2018 33

Tudalen 48



RECORD NO. 3560

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

CABINET RECORD OF DECISION

DATE OF MEETING: 25 SEPTEMBER 2018 AGENDA ITEM NO. 8
REPORT OF: Chief Officer (Housing and Assets)
SUBJECT: SINGLE ACCESS ROUTE TO HOUSING (SARTH)

RECOMMENDATIONS OF REPORT:

DECISION:

REASON FOR DECISION:

CONSULTATIONS
REQUIRED/CARRIED OUT:

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:

DISPENSATIONS

DATE PUBLISHED:

(1)  Cabinet continues to support the
management of the Single Access
Route to Housing (SARTH) policy
in Flintshire; and

(2)  Cabinet supports the revised and
updated policy document.

As detailed in the recommendations.
As in the report.
There were no consultations required for

this update report.

There are no specific resource
implications arising from this update
report.

None.

None.

26t September 2018

(Proper Officer)

Tudalen 49



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Call in notice February 2018

To Democratic Services Manager

We, the undersigned, wish to call in the following decision of the Cabinet:

Date of Cabinet meeting: QSW%WMWQW

Report title: S'fgleAmﬁSS QOLLbE.(;C: How &L.ﬂﬁ..éﬁ@.ﬁh}
Record of Decision number: ... . 3558 .......................................................

2Mhé. w.a.s..@.d%.d&msc..ﬁé.owhm.&...Haw..mauﬁ.efcpcme.x.we'e
Wenhitted as. bewng classel incaniecny. 1. 513¢. WNee. 16 thus. Rcomad

bave. pudter Lo patmanen._ ontle. Bord § ol b dotmr

C:\Users\wcslaw\AppData\LocaI\Microsoft\Windows\lNetCa o 4Q4KKTY\Current call in notice ( February
2018) (003).doc Feb 18 Pttt eos:



Call in notice February 2018

In initiating ‘this call in, we recognise that it will be regarded as a gross
discourtesy to the committee if Members who have requested the call in do
not attend the meeting of the committee without contacting the Democratic
Services Manager to explain their reasons.

We understand that the call in meeting will be held within 7 working days of
this call in notice being received and accepted.

Printed name

Signature
14‘QQ\— ...... . Helea Bowan,

Chief Officer (Governance) or

............................... Democratic Services Manager

C:\Users\cscslaw\AppData\Loca|\Microsoft\Wi e\ ent.Outlook\X4Q4KKTY\Current call in notice ( February
2018) (003).doc Feb 18 rrt'omtl’.‘éﬂ %Q



	Rhaglen
	3 Ystyried mater a atgyfeiriwyd at y Pwyllgor yn unol â'r Trefniadau Galw i Mewn
	4 Un Llwybr Mynediad at Dai (SARTH)
	SARTH - Cabinet Appendix 1
	Record of Decision - SARTH
	Call in notice 3560 Oct 18 SARTH


